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The Honorable Jim Wood 
Mayo r 
City of Oceanside 
300 N. Co a s t Highway 
Oceanside , CA 92054 

Dear Mayor Wood : 

It is our understanding that on November 1 , 2 00 6 , by a vote of 4- 1 , t he City 
Council accepted the findings of the October 12 , 2006 Airport Economic Study 
and the associa ted Public Works Department s taff recoTIooe ndations (staff 
memora ndum) dated October 13 , 2006 . We also understand that as a result of 
t he vote , the City plans t o keep the Oceanside Municipal Airport (Airport/OKB) 
open for 15 to 20 years , build new h a n ga r s o n the south side of the property , 
and pursue non-a e r o na u t i c a l cOTIooercial development o n certain parcels of 
airport property located o n t h e north side of the Airport . With this letter, 
we would li ke to take this opportunity t o clarify the Federal Aviation 
Administration 's (FAA) position on this impor tant matter , especially with 
regard to the erroneous assumption that the Airport ma y close in 15 to 20 
years . 

The 50 -acre Oceanside Municipal Airport is a n extremely valuable aviation 
asset for the local area , the San Diego region, southern California , and the 
national system of airports . This important general aviation airport , with 
its 3 ,200-foot runway , 85 based aircraft and over 35 ,000 annual operations , 
has been developed a nd i mp r o v e d wit h Federal assistance . This assistance , in 
t he form o f Federal Aviation Admi nist ration (FAA) Airport Improvement Program 
(AlP) funds , totals approximately $4 million . 

Upon acceptance o f these AlP grants , t he City agreed to specific Federal 
obligations , including the commitment to ke e p the Airport open and make it 
available for public use as an airport . Because airport property 
(approximately 22 acres) was acquired wi t h Al P funds , t he City 's Federal 
obligations do not e xpire i n 20 years , as assumed in the economic study and 
staff recormnendations . Th e obligation to keep the Airport open as an airport 
does not e xpire , since there i s no limit on t he duration of the obligations 
with respect to real property acquired with federal funds . 

This erroneous assumption is a disincentive to airport development , because 
prospective tenants and investors will assume the Ai rport will c lose in 15 to 
20 years . Choosing not to accept additional AlP funds or making an of fer to 
repay pa s t AlP grants will not change the Cit y 's Federal obligations to keep 
the Airport open indefinitely . I n addition , t he 22 -acre acquisition was made 
e xpressly for airport development . Therefore , this la nd must be used for 
airport purposes and is not available for no n-aeronautical purposes . 

The FAA has only rarely granted a sponsor a release from its Federal 
obligations s ufficient to al low for t he clo s u r e of an airport , and then only 
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in very unusual c ircumstances . A request for airport cl o s ur e from a sponsor 
r equires a demonstration that closure results in a net benefit t o aviation . 
Because of the important role that this Airpor t p l ays , the r AA does not 
anticipate granting any r e q u e s t for release to allow closure of the Airport . 
The Airport is and will continue to be too valuable for that to occur . 

Although the rAA recognizes that the City of Oceanside is a grovving community 
and attractive to residential and conwercial developers , the FAA do e s not 
accept the argument that non-aeronautical interest s , no w or in the future , 
justify the closure of the Airport so that it can b e redeveloped for no n­
aeronautical uses . Due to the importance of the Oceanside Airport and t he 
demand that e xists for aeron autical services , t he rAA would not concur with a 
release of any o f t h e airport property so that i t can b e used for non ­
aeronautical purposes (i .e . residential , commercial). The City 's apparent 
c hange in i t s priorities does not supersede its rede r a l obligations to keep 
t he Ai rport ope n a s a n a irport nor does its des i re to utilize airport property 
to generate sa les and property reven ue for t he bene fit o f the Cit y justify the 
di sposa l of airport p roperty fo r such a purpose . I n a n y event , consistent 
wi th Federal obl igat ions , the hi ghest and best use of a ll of the l a nd 
constituting the Airport is t hat it be u s e d as a n airport and for aeronautical 
purposes. 

Al t ho ug h the Ci t y' s plan for development of 40 ha ng a r s on the airport 's south 
side a nd the potential i ncrease i n revenues of $3.9 million for the Airport 
En t erp r i s e Fund , is a step f orward i n accommodat ing local aviation needs , all 
of t he airport p rope rty is obligated and va l u a b l e for current and future 
aeronautical uses . This is clearly depicted in the current Airport Layout 
Pl an (ALP) and s hown i n the current Airport Ma s t e r Pl an , whic h includes 
development f o r up to 100 hangars , generating more than $12 milli on over 25 
years . 

We also note that the City di d no t mo v e f o r ward wi th aeronautical development 
on the north s i d e of t he Airport - the location of federall y funded property , 
apparent ly unde r the erroneous a s sump t i on that i t could be used for non ­
aeronautical u ses . The FAA wi ll not c oncu r wi t h using that property for a ny 
other purpose but aeronauti ca l. We underst a nd that t he Ci ty accept e d a sa l e 
contract that ga ve the seller a right of f irst refusal to re-purchase t ha t 
propert y f r om t he City at the acquisition cos t if t he Cit y did not deve lop the 
s i t e for airport p u r p os e s within 5 years fr om the close o f the sale . Howe v e r, 
t h a t provis ion i s inconsistent with the purpose and conditions for the rAA's 
funding of t he p u rchase of the land , and we woul d not release it for sale . 

Of f u r t h e r concern to FAA is an apparent recent Ci t y practice of n ot 
solicitin g or accept i ng proposals for Airport improvements or granting long ­
term leases to aeronaut ical tenants despi te grea t deman d . I n addition , t he 
City Council a lso vo ted in 2005 not to accept a ny more Federal or state grants 
for airpor t improvements . Such a ctions undermine t he Airport 's long-term 
utilit y and the benefits the Airport provides to the public . 

I hope this letter clar ifies t he FAA 's position on the futur e of the Oceanside 
Muni cip a l Airport and corrects the misconception that City can clos e t h e 
Airport i n 15 -2 0 yea rs. The FAA r ema ins committed to the importance of the 
Oceanside Airport i n the region , and we wou l d welcome t he opportunity t o 
a ssist the Ci ty in developing the Oceanside Airport so i t can conti nue to 
ade quately serve the conwunit y ' s a viation n e e d s . 
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If I can be of f urther assistance , please do not h e s i t a t e to contact me at 
(310) 725 -3644 . 

Sincerely , 

a. BriaJ~t~o~-
"fV' Manager , Los Angeles Airports District Office 

cc : Rocky Chavez, Deputy Mayor 
Jack Feller , Council member 
Esther C, Sanchez , Council member 
Jerome M. Kern, Council member 


